Eleazer Homer, Architect, Grew Up in Belmont


E. B. Homer, the architect of the Town Hall Annex, was born to Orlando Mead Homer and Mary Frances Wellington Homer in 1864.  At that time, his family owned the land on which the Annex now stands, the site of the famous Wellington Tavern, which was a favorite stagecoach stop on the Concord Turnpike (now Concord Avenue).  His grandfather, J. Oliver Wellington, was one of the founding fathers of Belmont and the original chairman of the Board of Assessors.  


Homer grew up in town and graduated from the two-room Belmont High on School Street.  One of his teachers was Mary L. Burbank, for whom the Burbank School is named.  Homer went on to attend the School of Architecture at MIT (then known as the School of Technology, Boston).  While a student there in 1883, he lived with his widowed grandmother, Mrs. Oliver Wellington, on Pleasant Street.  After his marriage, he moved to the Captain James Homer house at 613 Pleasant.  His mother, a music teacher, was a long-time member of the Belmont School Committee.  On his father’s side, he was related to the artist Winslow Homer, who spent time on Pleasant Street as a boy and returned off and on to paint here during the 1860s and 1870s.


E. B. Homer received his B.S. in architecture in 1885 and subsequently worked for Hartwell and Richardson, the architects of Belmont’s Queen Anne-style Town Hall.  Between 1887 and 1901, he was a professor of architecture at MIT and designed the institute’s new headquarters on Trinity Place in Boston.  His design for the Belmont High School on Moore Street was selected above competing plans by unanimous vote of the building committee.  It cost $43,184 to build in 1898.  


Homer subsequently designed the 1899 Tudor Block on Leonard Street, which was razed in 1968 to make way for the Belmont Savings Bank, and the 1900 Daniel Butler School on Sycamore Street.

    
In 1901, he left Belmont to become the first director of the prestigious Rhode Island School of Design in Providence.  He served in France during the First World War and died in 1929 of complications from chronic bronchitis contracted during the war.  In his obituary, The Providence Journal described him as “one of the best known architects in New England.”

    
His young son, Arthur Bartlett Homer, born in Belmont in 1896, went on to become the CEO of Bethlehem Steel.

  



                                                         —Sharon Vanderslice
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Photo Caption:  Two of Homer’s Belmont buildings are the 1898 High School (now the Town Hall Annex), influenced by H. H. Richardson, and the 1899 Tudor-style “Olive Block” on Leonard Street.
